
AGENDA

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING
Date: Thursday, 30 November 2017
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT

Membership:

Councillors Cameron Beart, Paul Fleming and Lesley Ingham.

Quorum = 3 

Pages
1. Fire Evacuation Procedure

The Chairman will advise the meeting of the evacuation procedures to 
follow in the event of an emergency. This is particularly important for 
visitors and members of the public who will be unfamiliar with the building 
and procedures. 

The Chairman will inform the meeting whether there is a planned 
evacuation drill due to take place, what the alarm sounds like (i.e. ringing 
bells), where the closest emergency exit route is, and where the second 
closest emergency exit route is, in the event that the closest exit or route 
is blocked. 

The Chairman will inform the meeting that: 

(a) in the event of the alarm sounding, everybody must leave the building 
via the nearest safe available exit and gather at the Assembly points at 
the far side of the Car Park. Nobody must leave the assembly point until 
everybody can be accounted for and nobody must return to the building 
until the Chairman has informed them that it is safe to do so; and 

(b) the lifts must not be used in the event of an evacuation. 

Any officers present at the meeting will aid with the evacuation. 

It is important that the Chairman is informed of any person attending who 
is disabled or unable to use the stairs, so that suitable arrangements may 
be made in the event of an emergency. 

2. Apologies for Absence and Confirmation of Substitutes

3. Notification of Chairman and Outline of Procedure

Public Document Pack



4. Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for  themselves or their spouse, civil partner or 
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner.  They 
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in 
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 
2011.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be 
declared.  After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and 
not take part in the discussion or vote.  This applies even if there is 
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Council in May 2012.  The nature as well as the existence 
of any such interest must be declared.  After declaring a DNPI interest, 
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.

(c) Where it is possible that a fair-minded and informed observer, 
having considered the facts would conclude that there was a real 
possibility that the Member might be predetermined or biased the 
Member should declare their predetermination or bias and then leave the 
room while that item is considered.

Advice to Members:  If any Councillor has any doubt about the 
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any 
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Legal or from other Solicitors in Legal Services as 
early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting.

5. New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003

To consider an application for a new Premises Licence for the Corn 
Exchange, Standard Quay, Faversham, Kent, ME13 7BS.

1 - 52

Issued on Wednesday, 22 November 2017

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available 
in alternative formats. For further information about this service, or 
to arrange for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please 
contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out 
more about the work of this Committee, please visit 
www.swale.gov.uk

Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT



Swale Borough Council

Report to:                  Licensing Sub – Committee (Under the Licensing Act 2003)

Date: Tuesday 30th November 2017 at 14:00 

Report Author: Tom Dunn - Licensing Officer 

Subject: The Corn Exchange, Standard Quay, Faversham, Kent, ME13 7BS

Purpose and summary of report:

To consider an application, to which a representation has been made, for a new Premises 
Licence application under the Licensing Act 2003 – application reference number 
FAV/SWALE/189/0686

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to determine the application and decide whether to grant a licence. 
Members asked to consider the application on its merits.

Background papers:         The Licensing Act 2003
      DCMS Guidance Documents issued under Section 182 of the 

                                         Licensing Act 2003 as amended.    
                                         Swale Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy.

Contacts:      Tom Dunn at tomdunn@swale.gov.uk 
                                        Telephone: 01795 417177

The Licensing Act 2003 Act requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ 
that sets out the policies the Council will general apply to promote the licensing objectives 
when making decision on applications made under the Act.  The Policy will be available at 
the meeting for reference purposes.

Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in carrying out their 
functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 
182.  The Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that 
may arise.  Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and considered the 
Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do so.   However, as the licensing 
authority is under a duty to have regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for 
its departure from it.  This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from 
the Guidance result in a determination which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review. 
Should the need arise the Guidance will be available at the meeting for reference purposes.

The Licensing Authority must, under the Act refer any application for hearing to the Licensing 
Panel, if relevant representations are made by a responsible authority or other person. 
A copy of the Council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Panel in relation to an 
application, along with a copy of the Hearings Regulations has been circulated to all parties 
prior to the meeting.

Page 1

Agenda Item 5

mailto:tomdunn@swale.gov.uk


Report Title:  The Corn Exchange, Standard Quay, Faversham, Kent, ME13 7BS 

Application for: A premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Purpose of the report 
The report advises Members of an application for a Premises Licence to be granted under 
the Licensing Act 2003, made by Mrs Nicola White in respect of the premises The Corn 
Exchange (Appendix A and B) in respect of which nine (9) representations (Appendix C) 
have been received from members of the public. 

Mrs White and Kent Police agreed on 6th November 2017 additional conditions to be 
adopted on the Operating Schedule (Appendix D). 

Issues to be decided
1. Members are asked to determine whether to (i) grant subject to conditions 

consistent with the Operating Schedule modified to such an extent as considered 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and any mandatory 
condition, (ii) grant excluding any of the licensable activities applied for, (iii) grant 
refusing to specify a premises supervisor, or (iv) reject the application.

2. Background

           The Licensing Act requires the Council as licensing authority to carry out its 
various licensing functions so as to promote the following four licensing objectives:

i) the prevention of crime and disorder;

ii) the protection of public safety;

iii) the prevention of public nuisance: and

iv) the protection of children from harm

3. The Application
a.  On 9th October 2017 an application was received from Mrs Nicola White for the 

grant of a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect 
of premises The Corn Exchange at Standard Quay, Faversham, Kent, ME13 
7BS. The application is for provision of Supply of Alcohol, Live Music and 
Recorded Music.  The proposed hours of operation are:

Supply of Alcohol: Monday – Sunday 10:00 – 22:00

Live and Recorded Music (as per premises opening hours): 
Sunday – Thursday 10:00 – 22:00 
Friday – Saturday 10:00 – 23:00 

Opening Hours 

Sunday – Thursday 10:00 – 22:00 
Friday – Saturday 10:00 – 23:00 

Page 2



b. Live and recorded music is deregulated for a Licensed Premises during the hours 
of 08:00 – 23:00. Therefore although advertised on the Public Notice, the timings 
fall within these deregulations as per the Deregulation Act 2015 and Live Music 
Act 2012. 

c.  A copy of the application, which includes the operating schedule that details the 
steps the applicant intends to take to address the licensing objectives, is shown 
as Appendix A.  

d. The application has been correctly advertised in the local press and a notice has 
been displayed for the whole of the consultation period. There were minor errors 
on the blue poster which therefore were reciprocated in the newspaper advert. In 
particular the application form showed the Opening hours to be Sun – Thur 10:00 
– 22:00 but the blue poster showed the proposed Regulated Entertainment hours 
as 10:00 – 23:00 which will be after the premises have closed. It is for Members 
of the Sub-Committee to determine if there has been substantial compliance with 
the requirements of the legislation.  

e. The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor is Mrs Nicola White.

      Representations

Responsible authorities:

 Kent and Medway Fire & Rescue Service – No representations

 Kent County Council Trading Standards – No representations

 Kent County Council Social services Children & Families – No 
representations

 Home Office Immigration – No representations 

 Planning Department – Swale Borough Council – No representations

 Environmental Health – Swale Borough Council – No representations

 Kent County Council Public Health – No representations.

 Kent Police seek the attachment of conditions to clarify those proposed in 
the operating schedule, and assist in the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. This includes an agreed amendment for the Sale of Alcohol to 
be Sunday – Thursday 12:00 – 22:00 and Friday – Saturday 12:00 – 
23:00 – Representation form is shown as Appendix D.

f.  There have been nine (9) valid representation received from members of the 
public. Their comments are shown as Appendix C.

Responsible 
Authority / Other 

person

Licensing Objective Associated 
Documents

Appendix

Members of the 
public

Public Nuisance
Public Safety

One (1) message 
through the website 
and eight (8) emails

C

Page 3



4. Policy Considerations

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s Guidance apply to this application:

Chapter 2 – The licensing objectives

Chapter 8 – Applications for premises licences

Chapter 9 – Determining applications

Chapter 10 – Conditions attached to Premises Licences

The following paragraphs of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy apply to this 
application:

Sections 2.1 to 2.4 – These sections set out the Council’s approach with regard to 
licensing and details other mechanisms to deal with potential problems.

Section 1.1 to 1.4 – These sections set out the four licensing objectives and 
identifies matters that may be relevant to the promotion of each licensing 
objective.

5.     Determining the application – Options of the Panel

          The Panel must, when reaching a decision on the outcome of the application, take 
into account the licensing objectives.  Having had proper regard to the matters 
above the Panel may:

1. Grant the licence subject to such conditions as are consistent with the 
operating schedule accompanying the application; modified to such an 
extent as the Licensing sub-committee considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and any relevant mandatory 
condition.

2. Exclude from the licence any of the licensable activities applied for.

3. Refuse to specify a person in the licence as premises supervisor.

4. Reject the application.

      Members of the Licensing Act 2003 – Licensing Sub – Committee are reminded of their 
duty under the Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1989 to consider the crime and 
disorder implications of their decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to co-
operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Borough. 

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states:

‘’Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each 
authority to which this section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to 
the likely effect of the exercise of those function on, and the need to do all that is 
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area’’. 

Page 4



6. Implications Assessment 

The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of the State’s guidance and 
the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the 
decision departs from either the Guidance or the Policy clear and cogent reasons must 
be given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal /
challenge is increased. 

7. Human Rights

While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance
to the application are: 

 Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life. 

 Article 1 of the First Protocol – Protection of Property 

 Article 6(1) – Right to a fair hearing. 

 Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 

8. Recommendations 

Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well as against
the relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework. 

9. List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Application form
Appendix B – Plan of premises 
Appendix C – Representation (Other Persons)
Appendix D – Representation from the Police. 

      Appendix E – Plan of area
      Appendix F – Order of proceedings   

10. Appeals

      The applicant or any other person (objector) may appeal the Licensing Act 2003 Sub
      Committee’s decision within 21 days beginning with the day on which the Appellant is 
      notified. All/any appeals must be lodged with the Magistrates’ Court. Parties should be 
      aware that they MAY incur an Adverse Cost Order should they bring an appeal.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Appendix B

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



 

 
Chief Officer of Police Representation in relation to an application for grant of a premise licence made 
under Part 3 Section 17 Licensing Act 2003 (S18 Licensing Act 2003) 

 

Details of person making representation 

Name of Chief Officer of Police Chief Superintendent Smith                              

Postal Address: 
(Divisional Headquarters) 
 
 

Medway Police Station 
Purser Way 
Gillingham 
Kent  
ME7 1NE 

E-mail address licensing.north.divsion@kent.pnn.police.uk 

Telephone Numbers:  

Licensing Co-ordinator Geoff Rowley 01634 792733 

Licensing Officers Chris Hill 01634 792276 

 Clare Cossar 01634 792411 

 Diane Holroyd 01634 792733 

 Dan Hunt 01634 792411 

Details of premises representation is about 

Name of Premises: Corn Exchange 

Address of premises: Standard Quay 
Faversham 
Kent 

Date application received by 
police 

10th October 2017 

Date representation sent to 
Licensing Authority 

All representations must be made 
within 28 days of receipt of initial 
application 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club 
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. Part 4 Reg. 
22. 

6th November 2017 

The Chief Officer of Police has received an application for the grant of a premises licence 
made under the provisions of Section 17 Licensing Act 2003, and under Section 18 of that Act, 
asks the Licensing Authority to consider these representations in respect of: -  

Prevention of crime and disorder X 

Public Safety X 

Prevention of public nuisance X 

Protection of children from harm X 

 

 

Is this a representation regarding the Designation of Premises Supervisor under S18 (9) 
Licensing Act 2003?   No 
 

If yes complete the appropriate statement: 
 

Appendix D

Page 43



Please give the reason for the representation and detail the evidence supporting it under 
the appropriate headings: 
 
This is an application for a new premises licence which will be used as a restaurant on Standard 
Quay in Faversham. 
 
As this is a new premise there is little information that Kent Police can offer in respect of this 
premise. 

 
 

Supply of Alcohol  
 
Sunday - Thursday 12:00-22:00 
Friday-Saturday 12:00 - 23:00 
 
Kent Police are opposed to this application as stated and propose the following: 
 
1) Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 
The promotion of this objective by the imposition of conditions is a key to the Licensing Act 2003. 
It is important that conditions are attached to this licence that seeks to effectively promote this 
objective and minimise the risk of it being undermined.  
 
 
2) Public Safety 
 
Much of the representations that have been made in respect of the impact on the Licensing 
Objective of Crime & Disorder can be mirrored under this objective. Any incident of Public Order 
or Assault has a propensity to have an element of collateral impact on Public Safety, through the 
protagonists and their interaction with Police. The conditions need to be clear and precise, there is 
no mention of door staff or how many will be provided. 
 
 
3) Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
Public nuisance under the Licensing Act enables the interpretation of nuisance to retain its wider 
meaning under common law. It therefore retains the breadth and flexibility to take in all the 
concerns likely to arise from the operation of any premises conducting licensable activities in 
terms of the impact of nuisance on people living or doing business nearby. 
Any incidents that Kent Police responds to are by definition a nuisance to some section of our 
community. This is more pronounced during the hours of the Night Time Economy. Those that 
engage in anti-social behaviour and crime brought about by excessive uncontrolled consumption 
of alcohol are a public nuisance.  
 

4) Protection of Children from harm 
 
The applicant has not identified the requirement for identification for sales of alcohol, When 
children are allowed upon the premises?, any entertainment offered within the premises will be 
suitable for young persons, Children will be required to be supervised by an accompanying 
adult at all times, Soft drinks and non-alcoholic drinks will be available and a recognised Proof 

Page 44



of Age Policy will be enforced.  There is also no mention of the training of staff and the 
frequency of the training or when refresher training will be given.  
 

 
Kent Police seek the attachment of the following conditions to clarify those proposed in 
the operating schedule, and assist in the promotion of the licensing objectives: 
 

1. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition.   

 Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits 
and all areas where the sale and supply of alcohol occurs.  

 Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and 
date stamped, recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered 
sequentially and kept for a period of 28 days and handed to Police on 
demand.   

 The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed 
member of staff is capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in 
a recordable format to the Police and Local Authority on demand.  

  The recording equipment and any discs/tapes shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named 
individual.  

 In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the premises licence 
holder or DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing Officer 
immediately (licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk) 
 

2. All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.   

 Training should take place within six weeks of employment and any new 
employees will be supervised until the training has taken place.   

 Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every six months or 
earlier if required due to changes of legislation.   

 Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the nature, 
content and frequency of all training.  

 Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing 
Officer and authorised officers from the Local Authority upon request either 
electronically or hard copy. 
 

3. When the premises opens for a function/booking, the DPS/duty manager must risk 
assess if it is deemed necessary to require SIA door supervisors. If SIA staff are 
required a minimum of two SIA door supervisor to be on the premises. 
 

4. The premises shall have a written drugs policy, this will detail the strategies to 
minimise the use and supply of illegal drugs within the premises.  The drugs policy 
shall include a structured training policy for all staff covering the issues of misuse 
of drugs in relation to licensed premises.  Records must be kept to show members 
of staff who have taken the training. 
 

5. Alcohol is only to be served with a substantial table meal by waiter/waitress 
service. 

Page 45

mailto:licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk


 
6. The licensee shall ensure that no customers will take glasses or open bottles from 

the premises. 
 

 
 

 
pp PC Clare Cossar 
Supt Tim Smith       Date: 6th November 2017 
North Division Area Commander 
 

   

Page 46



Appendix E

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Making Swale a Better Place  

 
LICENSING AUTHORITY: 

SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-committee Hearing Procedure 
Applications for New Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates and Variations to existing 

licences and certificates 
 

1. Introductions 
 
 The Chairman will request all those persons participating in the hearing to identify 

themselves or introduce them. 
              Members/Officers/Applicant and any representative/Responsible Authorities/any other 

persons (objectors) 
 
2. Procedural Matters 
 
 The Chairman will: 
 

i) Confirm that all parties are aware of the sub-committee hearing procedure and that 
each party has a copy of the hearing procedure document. 

 
ii) Confirm that all sub-committee members have pre-read all the papers and any other 

documents contained in the report regarding the hearing. 
 
iii) Explain that the sub-committee will allow all parties to put their case fully and make 

full submissions, within a reasonable time frame.  The procedure will be discussion 
led by the Sub-Committee and  questions will usually be permitted. 

 
iv) Explain that where any person attending the hearing behaves in a disruptive 

manner, the sub-committee may direct that person to leave the hearing (including 
temporarily).  If this happens, the person may give the sub-committee in writing any 
information which the person would have been entitled to give orally. 

 
v) Enquire whether any draft conditions have been agreed between the applicant and 

any of the other parties for the sub-committee to consider. 
 
vi) Enquire whether any parties request to have any witness give evidence at the 

hearing; and if so grant the request unless the request is unreasonable. 
 
vii) Invite the parties, where appropriate, to appoint a spokesperson. 

Appendix F

Page 49



 
3. The Hearing 
 

A) The Chairman will ask the legal advisor or licensing officer to briefly outline the 
application and all representations regarding the application. 

 
B) i) Ask the Applicant (or their representative) to put forward their case  

 opening remarks and evidence (including witnesses). 
 

ii) Allow appropriate questions from any Responsible Authority and/or other 
person/members of the subcommittee 

 
 iii) Any points of clarification. 
 
C) i) Ask Responsible Authorities (where applicable) to put forward their case.  

Opening remarks and evidence (including witnesses) by the officer 
representing the responsible authority (or their representative). 

 
 ii) Allow appropriate questions from : 
  the Applicant/other Responsible Authorities/other persons/member of the 

Sub-Committee. 
 
 iii) Any points of clarification. 
 
D) i) Opening remarks and evidence by the other person/s (or 

spokesperson/representative). 
 
 ii) Allow appropriate questions from : 
  the Applicant, Responsible Authorities, each further other person and sub-

committee  members. 
  
  iii) Any points of clarification. 
 
E) Closing Summary 
  
  Responsible  Authorities/Other Persons/The Applicant 
 
F) End of Hearing 
 

i) The Chairman will ask the members of the sub-committee if they have any 
final questions for any party to the hearing. 

 
ii) The Chairman will ask the legal advisor whether there are any further 

matters to be raised or resolved before the hearing is closed. 
 
iii) The Chairman will bring the hearing to a close and shall declare that the sub-

committee will retire, to private session, to consider the application. 
 
iv) The Chairman will invite the legal advisor to remain with the sub-committee 

during its deliberations to provide any advice required. 
 

Page 50



G) The Decision 
 
  The Chairman shall declare in public session: 
 

i) The sub-committee’s determination and indicate that all parties to the 
hearing will receive a copy of the written Determination Notice regarding the 
sub-committee’s determination; and  

 
ii)  that all parties may appeal against the sub-committee’s decision within 21 

days beginning with the day on which the appellant is notified of the 
Licensing Authority’s written determination.  Appeals must be lodged with 
the Magistrates’ Court.  Parties should be aware that the Magistrates Court 
may make an order with respect to costs on any appeal. 

 
iii) Formally close the meeting. 

  
 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F




